
March 20, 2017

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, March 20, 2017, at 
7:30 pm. at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 
17602. The meeting was called to order by Mr. Dave Buckwalter, Chairman. In addition to 
Mr. Buckwalter, supervisors present were: Mr. John Blowers, Mr. Ethan Demme, Mr. Glenn 
Eberly and Mr. Corey Meyer. Also present was Mr. Ralph Hutchison, Township Manager.

The following persons signed in as being present in the audience:

Lynn Commero, representing Lancaster Newspapers
Rex Clark, 83 East 5th Ave, Everetl, representing CSE-Dutch Wonderland
Ken Hornbeck, representing High Real Estate Group
Brad Mowbray, representing High Real Estate Group
Sarah Rider, Barley & Snyder, representing High
Bill Schnoor, representing Raudenbush Engineering
Pat Finefrock, Eastwood Meadows, representing Ken Hertz
Dan McCuen, Pine Drive
Scott McCuen, Stumptown Road
David Hogg, Clearview Associates
Tony Sites, representing High Real Estate Group
Larry Snyder, Eastwood Meadows

Approval of the Minutes of the Monday, March 6, 2017 Regular Meeting

Chairman Buckwalter asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the minutes of 
the March 6, 2017 regular meeting as prepared. 

A motion was made by Mr. Blowers to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve the 
minutes as presented.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by a vote of four in 
favor and one abstaining (Mr. Eberly was absent from the March 6, 2017 meeting.)

Approval of Bills

Chairman Buckwalter presented the bills to be paid from various funds for the total amount of 
$230,607.97. He discussed some of the larger items including a payment in the amount of
$9,655.00 to Intoximeters Inc. for new breath testing equipment and a payment in the amount of 
$8,500.00 to Doug’s Tree Service for right of way tree removal related to the sewer system.

A motion was made by Mr. Meyer and seconded by Mr. Blowers to approve the payment of the 
bills as listed in the amount of $203,607.97. The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote.



Old Business

a. Smoketown Airport Time Extension for Township Plan and Action

Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present.

Chairman Buckwalter stated that they received a letter from ELA requesting a time extension 
until June 1, 2017 to work on the engineer’s comments. Mr. Hutchison stated that this is a second 
time extension because the current one expires before the Board’s next meeting.

Mr. Blowers made a motion to approve the time extension for Township plan and action until 
June 1, 2017 for Smoketown Airport.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote.

b. Tru Hotel Request for  Land Development Plan Waiver: 2310 Lincoln Highway East

Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. David Hogg was 
present.

Mr. Hogg of Clearview Associates addressed the Board.  He stated that they have made some 
minor changes to the shape and size of the proposed restaurant on the property.  He stated that 
the approved building was to be a 7000 square feet rectangle but the redesign is a smaller 
building of 5842 square feet which reduces the amount of impervious surface for the project.  He 
stated that there will be no redesign of stormwater and that the project exceeds the code 
requirements for minimum parking.  He stated that they will provide full construction drawings 
to be used for the inspection phase and when completed they will provided an As Built Plan to 
the Township for recording.  

Chairman Buckwalter stated that the Township Planning Commission has reviewed the changes 
and is recommending approval contingent upon the Land Development Plan being revised 
showing the changes.

Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the land development plan waiver for Tru Hotel at 2310 
Lincoln Highway East subject to the applicant preparing and recording a Land Development 
Plan showing the proposed changes. Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote.

c. Lincoln Highway Business Improvement District Preliminary Plan

Chairman Buckwalter stated that there was a meeting prior to the Board meeting to discuss the 
Lincoln Highway Business Improvement District Preliminary Plan.  He stated that he heard no 
strong opposition or suggested revisions for the proposed plan.  Mr. Demme suggested revising 
the ordinance in Section 5 (d) and (e) to allow for a rate cap relative to the Township tax to give 
business owners a maximum cost amount.  Mr. Hutchison explained that there is no need to 
change the preliminary plan but the Board can draft the ordinance to implement the plan the way 
that the Board feel is appropriate. Mr. Blowers stated that he encouraged business owners to 



read the plan.  Mr. Meyer asked if Authority Members can be removed.  Mr. Hutchison 
explained that the Supervisors are the appointing Authority and it will be a 5 member Board with 
staggering 5 year terms for reappointments.  He stated that if the Board finds that there will be no 
changes to the preliminary plan as distributed and action is taken tonight it will become the final 
plan.  He explained that the final plan would then be distributed to all affected property owners 
and they will have 45 days to give notice of opposition. He stated that if the Township does not 
receive notice of opposition greater than forty percent, the Board can then adopt an ordinance to 
create the Business Improvement District.

Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the preliminary plan as the final plan for the Business 
Improvement District. Mr. Blowers seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice 
vote.

d. Resolution re: Proposed Increase to County Excise Tax

Mr. Hutchison stated that the Board had discussed this item at prior meetings and it was also 
discussed at an informal meeting of the Business Improvement District.  He stated that based on 
the input from those meetings and correspondence with the Greater Lancaster Hotel and Motel 
Association and local hotel and motel property owners the proposed resolution was created to 
oppose the proposed increase to the County Excise Tax.  The Board asked Mr. Hutchison if he 
knew when the County Commissioners may act on the proposed increase or if they were still 
creating a Tourism Improvement District.  Mr. Hutchison stated that he has heard nothing on 
when or if the County Commissioners may discuss the increase and that the proposed Tourism 
Improvement District was discussed but nothing came of it.  Mr. Hutchison reviewed the 
proposed Resolution.  He stated that there were 67 locations in East Lampeter Township where 
the Lancaster County Excise Tax was collected and 50 of the 67 locations also collected the 
Room Tax in 2016 for a total amount of $2,424,478.26 which represents thirty percent of all 
taxes collected in Lancaster County from these sources in 2016.  He stated that based upon the 
amount collected in 2016 the proposed increase in the Excise Tax from 1.1 percent to 3 percent 
would collect approximately an additional $933,000 from East Lampeter Township based 
businesses annually. He stated that the proposed tax would have a negative impact upon 
overnight stay businesses in East Lampeter Township and Lancaster County and that the Board 
would prefer to have Lancaster County generate additional tourism marketing funds from other 
resources. He stated that it would state that the Board is opposed to any increase in the County 
Excise Tax.  

Mr. Meyer and Mr. Demme stated that they support the Township Resolution.  Mr. Rick
Stammel of Dutch Wonderland stated that he supports the proposed increase in the County 
Excise Tax.  Mr. Blowers asked Mr. Stammel if he had heard any discussion of taxing all tourist 
attractions instead of just lodging.  Mr. Stammel stated that if they tax all tourist attractions it 
would impact people locally not just out of area visitors.

Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the Resolution in opposition of the proposed increase to 
the Lancaster County Excise Tax.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote.

Resolution #2017-13



New Business

a. Greenland Village Apartments Community Center – PRD Hearing

Chairman Buckwalter announced the start of the PRD public hearing for Greenland Village 
Apartments Community Center.  

Ms. Sarah Ryder from Barley Snyder is representing the applicant High Properties LLC.  She 
introduced Brad Mowbray, Tony Sites, Ken Hornbeck and Bill Schnoor.  She stated that they 
were requesting a modification of the Boards decision dated June 19, 1979 and recorded June 25, 
1979 for the property at 459 Greenland Drive approving a Planned Residential Development 
(PRD).  She stated that the PRD requires certain recreational facilities be constructed within the 
PRD.  She stated that there is currently a tennis court on the property that High is proposing to 
remove and construct a pool and community center which is shown on the Greenland Village 
Land Development Plan.  She stated that they are requesting that the PRD decision be modified 
to permit the changes to allow the recreational improvements as shown on the Land 
Development Plan.  

Chairman Buckwalter explained that the purpose of the hearing is because the PRD was set up 
on a previous ordinance so it needs to be addressed by a public hearing.  The Board members 
and the applicant discussed the location of the tennis courts, parking, number of units in the 
complex, the effect the proposed pool/community center location would have on the official 
map’s bike trail, and usage of the pool/community center.  Mr. Larry Snyder a member of 
Eastwood Meadows Residents Association expressed concern about the curbing, sidewalks and 
streetlights.  Ms. Pat Finefrock, speaking on behalf of Mr. Ken Hertz, stated that he wanted the 
Board to know he was in favor of the pool and community center and that High has done a great 
job improving the property.

Chairman Buckwalter closed the hearing.

Mr. Blowers made a motion to approve the modified change of use request for the PRD for 
Greenland Village Apartments Community Center owned by High Properties LLC as presented.  
Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

b. Greenland Village Apartments Land Development Plan #16-23: Greenland Drive

Brad Mowbray from High Properties addressed the Board. He introduced Tony Sites also from 
High Properties.  He stated that High purchased Greenland Village Apartments in January of 
2016 and they have renovated one third of the apartment units, repaired/replaced landscaping, 
resealed/striped parking lots, painted exteriors, and did some minor concrete repairs to enhance 
sidewalks in the community.  He stated that they have monthly community events, 24/7 on call 
maintenance and have recently won three awards.  He stated that the proposed community center 
would have a pool and fitness center.  Mr. Blowers asked if the improvements would affect the 
cost of the rent. Mr. Mowbray replied that they would remain workforce level rentals. Mr. Bill 
Schnoor stated that the existing sidewalk would be extended along South Oakview Road along 
the front of the property and that they would be improving the ADA accessible ramps.  He stated 



that the lighting plan calls for 2 additional pole lights. He stated that there will be parking lot 
lighting and on building lighting.  Mr. Snyder asked if they were going to extend the sidewalk to 
the rest of the apartments. Mr. Schnoor replied that there are no plans to add sidewalks past the 
property boundary.  

Mr. Demme commented that the Township engineer’s letter asked that the applicant consider a 
pedestrian connection between the proposed community building and the existing apartments to 
the west.  Mr. Schnoor stated that the Planning Commission asked the applicant to consider a 
connecting interior sidewalk.  He stated that they would gladly work with staff to improve 
connectivity.  He stated that the mailboxes on the North side should be relocated and a sidewalk 
is to go behind the mailboxes which would be accessible from the front. Mr. Dan McCuen of the 
East Lampeter Township Planning Commission addressed the Board regarding the sidewalk 
connection and parking spaces at the Community Center.  Mr. Demme asked about staff’s 
discussion regarding the mailboxes. Mr. Hutchison stated that staff had requested that the 
mailbox be moved to inside of the property instead of in the right of way. Mr. Demme stated that 
he would like to have them moved from the right of way and Mr. Buckwalter stated that he 
would prefer them be located inside the complex instead of right on the street. Mr. Meyer asked 
about a bike rack on the property referenced in the LCPC comments.

Mr. Blowers made a motion to approve the Greenland Village Apartments Land Development 
Plan #16-23 on Greenland Drive subject to the David Miller Associates letter dated March 19, 
2017 granting #1 waiver of preliminary, #2 modification of plan scale, #3 modification of 
cartway edge minimum radius, #4 modification of sidewalks on one side of parking lot, relief on 
Subdivision & Land Development items #9 mailboxes and #10 curbing and to work with staff on 
item #11 to consider a pedestrian connection outside of this planning process but connection has 
to be done before facility opening and LCPC comments. Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and 
after further discussion it was passed by a vote of four in favor and one against (Mr. Demme).

c. Leacock Township Official Map

Chairman Buckwalter stated that Ms. Tara Hitchens has drafted a letter to Leacock Township 
regarding the review of their Official Map.  Mr. Hutchison stated that Municipal Planning Code 
requires certain things to be shared with neighboring planning properties and allow them 
opportunity to comment.  He stated that after Ms. Hitchens and the Township Planning 
Commission reviewed the map they provided no comments besides typographical errors found in 
the ordinance.

Mr. Eberly made a motion to authorize the letter to Leacock Township regarding their official 
map as drafted.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

Other Business

a. Consideration of Bids for 2017 In Place Paving Materials

Chairman Buckwalter stated that bids for the 2017 In Place Paving had been opened on 



March 16, 2017. He stated that the Township received 3 bids and Pennsy Supply was the lowest 
bid at $328,551.95. 

Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve Pennsy Supply as the low bidder for the 2017 In Place 
Paving Bid.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

b. Proposal for Services re: RACP Grant Application – Stevens & Lee Consulting

Mr. Hutchison stated that a proposal for consulting services has been provided by Stevens & Lee 
Consulting.  He stated that the Board authorized the application for funding through the 
Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program (RACP) for funding in the amount of $806,776.  He 
stated that this proposal serves as a lobbying effort to assist the Township’s efforts in obtaining 
funding for the “Rockvale Trail” project.  He stated that the proposal is provided as a “success” 
based contingency fee of 15 percent of any amount awarded to the Township through the 
program.  He stated that if the Township would receive the full amount requested in the 
application, the maximum contingency fee amount would be $121,016.40.

Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the proposal for consulting services from Stevens & Lee 
Consulting.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

c. Emergency Services Committee Citizen Representative Appointment – Mr. Alex Sload, 
Term Ending 12/31/17

Chairman Buckwalter stated Mr. Alex Sload has indicated his interest to serve on the Emergency 
Services Committee as a citizen representative.

Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the appointment of Mr. Alex Sload to Emergency Services 
Committee Citizen Representative with a term ending 12/31/17.  Mr. Demme seconded the 
motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote.

d. MS4 Report

Mr. Hutchison stated that the Township was recognized as a third place winner of the BUBBA’s 
(Best Urban BMP in the Bay Award) for the stream and riparian buffer improvements in Flory 
Park.  He stated that the Township’s Stormwater Management Program is in place and has had 
its first meeting.  He stated that the DEP grant has been submitted for the Pequea Creek and 
work is being done to update the Stormwater Ordinance.

Public Comment

Mr. Dan McCuen from the East Lampeter Township Planning Commission expressed concern 
regarding the gender and age gap of the representative’s serving on the Township’s Boards and 
Commissions.  He provided the Board with some names who are willing to serve the community.



Adjournment

A motion was made by Mr. Eberly and seconded by Mr. Demme to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, April 3, 2017 beginning at 7:30 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Ralph Hutchison
















































